Council Minutes of the Meeting of September 15, 2011
Page 12

UNAPPROVED

CITY OF BLAINE

ANOKA COUNTY, MINNESOTA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING NO. 11-50
Thursday, September 15, 2011
7:30 P.M.


Council Chambers


10801 Town Square Drive

CALL TO ORDER BY MAYOR RYAN

The meeting was called to order at 7:38 p.m. by Mayor Ryan followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and the Roll Call.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

ROLL CALL

Councilmembers Bourke, Clark, Herbst, Hovland, Kolb, Swanson, Mayor Ryan, City Manager Clark Arneson, and City Attorney Thomas Sweeney.

ABSENT:  None.

Quorum present.

ALSO PRESENT: Bryan Schafer, Community Development Director; Bob Therres, Public Services Manager; Joe Huss, Finance Director; Jean Keely, City Engineer; Nyle Zikmund, Fire Chief; Roark Haver, Communications Technician; Catherine Ekstrand, Deputy City Clerk; and Recording Secretary Linda Dahlquist.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Workshop Meeting – September 1, 2011

Regular Meeting – September 1, 2011

Action 11-227 (AI 4.1 and 4.2)
Moved by Councilmember Hovland, seconded by Councilmember Bourke, that the Minutes of the Workshop Meeting of September 1 and the Regular Meeting of September 1, 2011 be approved.

Motion adopted unanimously.

AWARDS - PRESENTATIONS - ORGANIZATIONAL BUSINESS

Proclamation – Honor the Heroes – Patriot Day
Mayor Ryan proclaimed Friday, September 16, 2011, to be Honor the Heroes – Patriot Day in the City of Blaine. 
Proclamation – Constitution Week
Mayor Ryan proclaimed September 17 through 23, 2011, to be Constitution Week in the City of Blaine.
A representative from the Anoka Chapter of the Daughters of the American Revolution accepted the proclamation and thanked the City of Blaine.
Senator PamWolf stated she had four highlights from the last legislative session:
1. LGA was put at 2010 levels and frozen permanently. 

2. The change from market value credit to a market value exclusion.  
3. Cities will have more say in variances.  
4. Rural cities now have the ability to buy and sell public safety equipment.  
Representative Linda Runbeck stated the market value exclusion was the largest change in the last session.  She commented no one had gotten a full reimbursement over the last two to three years.  She stated other changes were: TIF has been extended to cover job development; an increase to land holds by one year for TIF; a decrease in the renters refund base to 17%, and a special provision on accelerating disaster payments.  
Representative Roger Chamberlain stated when the last session ended, nobody was completely happy with the outcome, but in the end we are trying to drive reform and change the way the government operates.  Services were prioritized to be made more efficient and effective.  

Mayor Ryan stated it is time to review the property tax rebate program.  Representative Chamberlain responded people use their refund checks to live on.  He stated a committee has been formed to conduct a study on the property tax program.

Mayor Ryan stated Blaine is working with Metro Mayors on getting businesses involved with the cities, the County and the State.  Representative Chamberlain responded the legislature works well with the coalitions to bring more leverage and make the counties and the State more business friendly.

Mayor Ryan commented he is concerned about the federal mandates on the trucking industry.  Representative Chamberlain responded a coalition of the states may be helpful with federal mandates.
Councilmember Herbst stated mandates from the State and federal government are job killers.  
Representative Chamberlain responded the three of us are pledged to fighting mandates.  
Councilmember Clark stated with the new market value homestead exclusion, Blaine has to raise the tax rate by three points to stay even.  He stated to the State representatives, stop and/or undue the mandates.  He stated let the cities’ manage their own affairs and be accountable to the tax payers.  He commented the State reduces their taxes and the cities have to increase their taxes, so the peoples’ tax burden continues to rise.
Representative Runbeck responded she showed Blaine’s number at $1,000,000.  Councilmember Clark stated from the old formula to the new formula the dollar value of Blaine has gone down by $3.2 million dollars.

City Manager Arneson stated a portion of the market value that is now excluded from Blaine’s taxation is $3.2 million because it was shifted from a credit program to an exclusion program.  Representative Runbeck responded there should not be that much difference, the size of the reimbursement should be the same amount that is being excluded.  

Finance Director Huss stated the amount of tax that was reduced from the exclusion was $3.2 million less in the tax base.  He stated this value amount is spread throughout Blaine.  

Representative Runbeck stated the City needs to cut spending.  Councilmember Clark stated last year Blaine saw a 10% market value loss in Blaine.
Councilmember Herbst invited Representative Runbeck to talk to Finance Director Huss.  Councilmember Clark commented maybe Anoka County got the information wrong.
Mayor Ryan commented it will be confusing to explain it to the tax payers in truth in taxation because Blaine is increasing the levy to cover the loss.  He stated people with homes of $150,000 and below will get a tax break.  Representative Runbeck responded that tax break is for people with homes of $400,000 and under.  She stated the unknown impact and how it will spread back by levy or backfill.  She’s encouraging cities to cut their spending as opposed to backfilling.  She commented Blaine did not receive much last year.  She stated the program is a revenue source that is disappearing. 
Councilmember Kolb stated Blaine is fiscally responsible and Blaine has cutback and does not back fill.  She stated Blaine has growth in the city.  Mayor Ryan commented Blaine had over 350 new homes built this year. 
Representative Runbeck stated she would make an appointment with City Manager Arneson.  
Councilmember Clark stated the policies coming from the legislature are driving up the taxes on the cities.

Representative Runbeck stated due to the recession, both the State and local government need to justify their spending.
COMMUNICATIONS

Mayor Ryan stated there is a traffic issue on 120th Lane, 117th and 119th due to the construction and closure of County Road 14.  He stated law enforcement and a speed trailer have been used to help with slowing down the traffic.  Councilmember Herbst stated it will be tough until the construction is done.  City Manager Arneson stated law enforcement is monitoring the road.  Councilmember Kolb stated full dump trucks are driving on the new road, on 117th, but are supposed to drive on 109th.  City Manager Arneson stated law enforcement is on 117th.  Councilmember Swanson asked if there are weight limits on 117th.  Public Service Manager Therres responded 117th is a collector road and is built to handle the trucks.
Mayor Ryan stated World Fest is this Saturday from 1:00-5:00 p.m. 

OPEN FORUM FOR CITIZEN INPUT 

None.
ADOPTION OF AGENDA

City Manager Arneson asked for Administration agenda items 12.1A, 12.1B, 12.1C and 12.2 be moved forward on the agenda.
8:00 P.M. – PUBLIC HEARINGS AND ITEMS SET FOR A CERTAIN TIME

Moved in the agenda to follow agenda item 12.2.

ADMINISTRATION
Resolution No. 11-0128, Approving Supplement to the Joint Powers Agreement for the Provision of Fire Protection Services with the Cities of Mounds View and Spring Lake Park.
Action 11-228 (AI 12.1A)

Moved by Councilmember Herbst, seconded by Mayor Ryan, that Resolution No. 11-0128, “Supplement to the Joint Powers Agreement for the Provision of Fire Protection Services with the cities of Mounds View and Spring Lake Park,” be approved.

Finance Director Huss reported the next three items (12.1A, 12.1B and 12.1C) have to do with one of the bond issues being discussed tonight.  The supplement to the Joint Powers Agreement with Spring Lake Park and Mounds View.  The original Joint Powers Agreement contemplated the possibility of the cities issuing debt in order to fund capital improvements.  The supplement sets out each cities’ responsibility based on the agreement and in order to issue a debt to purchase fire equipment, the Council’s approval is needed.  

Councilmember Bourke stated the truck that the Council viewed tonight does not match the truck in the picture.  Fire Chief Zikmund stated all he had was a picture of a truck and the cost of the truck will be less than $400,000.  The committee continues to design the truck and the specifications should be finished next month.  

Councilmember Bourke stated the truck had a custom built chassis and he is concerned about replacement part costs. 

Fire Chief Zikmund stated the truck that the City is specing is smaller.  

Finance Director Huss stated the item is a supplement to issue bonds and not the equipment specifications.  

Motion adopted unanimously.

Resolution No. 11-0129, Joint Powers Agreement with Houston Galveston Area Council (HGAC) Purchasing Cooperative.
Action 11-229 (AI 12.1B)

Moved by Councilmember Bourke, seconded by Councilmember Swanson, that Resolution No. 11-0129, “Joint Powers Agreement with Houston Galveston Area Council (HGAC) Purchasing Cooperative,” be approved.

Finance Director Huss reported Spring Lake Park, Blaine and Mounds View (SBM) fire personnel have researched sources for the purchase of fire vehicles and have found the prices negotiated by the Houston Galveston Area Council (HGAC) Purchasing Cooperative to be the most favorable.  In SBM fire personnel’s research found other Minnesota cities have purchased through HGAC.  A Joint Powers Agreement with HGAC is needed in order to purchase equipment.
Councilmember Clark asked what will be the state of purchase in Minnesota or Texas or where the state is the vendor.  The cooperative is acting as a purchasing agent.  Financial Director Huss stated the purchase would be made where the vendor is located.  Fire Chief Zikmund stated there are three vendors which are located in Minnesota, Wisconsin and Texas.

City Attorney Sweeney responded the state of purchase will be where the truck manufacturer is located.
Councilmember Swanson clarified that the state of purchase is where the manufacturer is located

.  

Councilmember Clark stated Blaine will pay freight.
Fire Chief Zikmund stated there are three manufacturers of the truck the City wants to buy.  HGAC does all the bidding.

Councilmember Bourke asked if three trucks will come from three vendors.  Fire Chief Zikmund responded the purchase would be three trucks from one vendor.

Councilmember Clark asked if the Council will see the actual purchase agreement.  City Manager Arneson stated the Council can approve the specification and or purchase order if they want.  He suggested the Council approve the contract for the purchase.

Councilmember Clark confirmed the contract will come back to the City Council.

Motion adopted unanimously.

Resolution No. 11-0130, Authorizing the Sale of $1,555,000 General Obligation Equipment Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 2011B. 
Action 11-230 (AI 12.1C)

Moved by Councilmember Hovland, seconded by Councilmember Swanson, that Resolution No. 11-0130, “Authorizing the sale of $1,555,000 General Obligation Equipment Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 2011B,” be approved.

Mayor Ryan confirmed the purchase is for five vehicles. 

Councilmember Bourke asked about the Fire Chief’s vehicle.  Fire Chief Zikmund stated this request is a replacement vehicle such as a Tahoe, or similar vehicle.

Finance Director Huss stated this is the equipment certificates which are the borrowing mechanism to fund the purchase of the equipment.  He stated it is the general obligation of all three cities (SBM) and the repayment is at the rate that is in effect in the year in which the payment is made.
Motion adopted unanimously.
Resolution 11-0124, Providing for the Competitive Negotiated Sales of General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2011A, in the Amount of $2,560,000.

Action 11-231 (AI 12.2)

 Moved by Councilmember Herbst, seconded by Councilmember Swanson, that Resolution 11-0124, “Providing for the Competitive Negotiated Sales of General Obligation Improvement Bonds, Series 2011A, in the Amount of $2,560,000,” be approved.
Finance Director Huss reported this resolution calls for the sale of $2,560,000 in General Obligation Improvement Bonds and sets the sale date of the bonds.  The proceeds from the bonds will fund project costs related to public improvements that have been approved by Council for the Pavement Management Program in order to get the work done sooner.  
Councilmember Herbst asked about the rates

Terry Heaton, Springsted consultant, responded the estimate for the Pavement Management Program for 10 year bonds rate is 2% and the equipment certificates interest rate for a five year certificate is 1.4% 
Councilmember Herbst asked about Blaine’s debt service.  Financial Director Huss stated the general improvement bond is $150,000, for the equipment certificate $250,000 and for the General Obligation bonds the annual payment starts at $450,000 and drops each year.  The preliminary debt levy is set to cover debt service.  

Councilmember Herbst asked if the City will have savings.  Financial Director Huss responded a preliminary levy was set to reduce the debt service.  He stated the sale date is set for October 20, 2011.  

Motion adopted unanimously.

8:00 P.M. - PUBLIC HEARING AND ITEMS SET FOR A CERTAIN TIME

Motion 11-0018, Conduct Public Hearing for a Private On-Sale Wine License for KMP Enterprises LLC, dba Carbone’s Pizza Blaine, #220.
Action 11-232 (AI 9.1)
Moved by Councilmember Herbst, seconded by Councilmember Kolb, that a “Private On-Sale Wine License for KMP Enterprises LLC, dba Carbone’s Pizza Blaine, #220,” be approved.

Mayor Ryan opened the public hearing at 8:37 p.m.

Mayor Ryan closed the public hearing at 8:39 p.m.
Motion adopted unanimously.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA:  

Action 11-233 (AI 10.1, 10.2, 10.3, 10.4, and 10.5)

Moved by Councilmember Kolb, seconded by Councilmember Bourke, that the following be approved:  

Motion 11-0019, Schedule of Bills Paid for 9-15-11.
Motion 11-0020, Approve a Tobacco and Tobacco Products License for Neighborhood Dollar Plus Grocery, 10835 University Avenue NE, Blaine. 

Motion 11-0021, Approve an On-sale 3.2 Percent Malt Beverage License for Carbone’s Pizza Blaine, 10950 Club West Parkway, #220, Blaine. 
Resolution 11-0125, Approve a Temporary Road Closure of Town Square Drive NE for Blaine World Fest on September 17, 2011 from 9:00 a.m. until 6:00 p.m. 
Ordinance 11-2234, Chapter 192, Vacation of Drainage and Utility Easement for Lot 3, Block 2, the Sanctuary 5th Addition, Vacation No. V11-03. 
Motion adopted unanimously. 

DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS

None.

ADMINISTRATION (CONTINUED)
Resolution 11-0115, Initiate Project and Order Preparation of Feasibility Report for the 2012 Bituminous Overlay, Improvement Project No. 12-01.

Action 11-234 (AI 12.3)

Moved by Councilmember Swanson, seconded by Councilmember Herbst, that Resolution 11-0115, “Initiate Project and Order Preparation of Feasibility Report for the 2012 Bituminous Overlay, Improvement Project No. 12-01,” be approved.

City Engineer Keely reported at the August 18, 2011 Council workshop, staff brought forward a list of proposed projects for the 2012 Pavement Management Program. One of the projects was a bituminous overlay for streets within the Erickson Meadows neighborhood.  All the streets in this neighborhood are over 20 years old and have not had an overlay. The preliminary cost estimate is roughly $430,000 to be funded through a combination of assessments to benefitting properties and the Pavement Management Program capital improvement plan funds. 
Councilmember Herbst left the Council Chambers at 8:44 p.m. and returned at 8:48 p.m.  

Mayor Ryan asked when the residents can pay the assessment.  City Engineer Keely stated the residents can pay the assessment 30 days after the assessment and save the interest.  She stated the options were laid out prior to the public hearing and in a letter to the residents. 

Motion adopted unanimously.

Resolution 11-0116, Initiate Project and Order Preparation of Feasibility Report for the Reconstruction of Davenport Street NE from 99th Lane NE to 105th Avenue NE, Improvement Project No 11-11.

Action 11-235 (AI 12.4)

Moved by Councilmember Swanson, seconded by Councilmember Clark, that Resolution 11-0116, “Initiate Project and Order Preparation of Feasibility Report for the Reconstruction of Davenport Street NE from 99th Lane NE to 105th Avenue NE, Improvement Project No 11-11,” be approved.

City Engineer Keely reported the staff reviewed several eligible Municipal State Aid Street (MSAS) that have reached or surpassed their 20-year life cycle and are in poor to very poor condition.  Staff is recommending for 2012 the partial reconstruction of Davenport Street NE from 99th Lane NE to 105th Avenue NE.  The preliminary estimate is approximately $760,000.  The proposed project would be funded by utilizing the available funds in the MSAS account along with assessments.   The benefitting properties in this commercial and industrial area will be assessed at 50% 
Mayor Ryan asked if the City has done an inspection of the foundation of the road.  City Engineer Keely responded the City will do soil borings to inspect the road foundation.

Councilmember Hovland left the Council Chambers at 8:49 p.m. and returned at 8:50 p.m.
Motion adopted unanimously.

Resolution 11-0117, Initiate Project and Order Preparation of Feasibility Report for the Reconstruction of Oak Park Boulevard NE/119th Avenue NE from Jefferson Street NE to 125th Avenue NE, Improvement Project No. 11-12.

Action 11-236 (AI 12.5)

Moved by Councilmember Bourke, seconded by Councilmember Kolb, that Resolution 11-0117, “Initiate Project and Order Preparation of Feasibility Report for the Reconstruction of Oak Park Boulevard NE/119th Avenue NE from Jefferson Street NE to 125th Avenue NE, Improvement Project No. 11-12,” be approved.

City Engineer Keely reported this is the second of the MSAS routes the staff proposes for 2012.  A partial reconstruction of Oak Park Boulevard NE/119th Avenue NE from Jefferson Street NE to 125th Avenue NE.
The preliminary estimate is approximately $1,140,000.  The proposed project would be funded by utilizing the available funds in the MSAS account along with assessments to benefitting properties.  The benefitting residential properties under the current assessment policy would be assessed 25% of the actual costs of a residential street.
Councilmember Herbst asked about the assessment cost to the residents.  City Engineer Keely responded the cost will depend on the final project costs.
Mayor Ryan stated the City has $3 million to use in the MSAS account.  City Engineer Keely responded yes, as long as the City has money in the MSAS account the projects will be brought forward.

Motion adopted unanimously.

Resolution 11-0118, Initiate Project and Order Preparation of Feasibility Report for the 93rd Lane NE Industrial Park Area Street Improvement Project No. 11-16.
Action 11-237 (AI 12.6)

Moved by Councilmember Swanson, seconded by Mayor Ryan, that Resolution 11-0118, “Initiate Project and Order Preparation of Feasibility Report for the 93rd Lane NE Industrial Park Area Street Improvement Project No. 11-16,” be approved.

City Engineer Keely reported in Blaine’s 2012 Pavement Management Program this project is the first non-state aid project proposed for partial reconstruction.  In addition the ditches and culverts along the streets have collected sediment and do not function correctly resulting in standing water and drainage problems.  The project will reconstruct the roads and regrade the ditches and repair or replace culverts where needed.  The Pavement Management Program capital improvement plan fund does not have the capability to fund the reconstruction of the entire 93rd Lane industrial park area in one year.  It is proposed to complete the reconstruction of the streets in phases starting in 2012.  

City Engineer Keely made a correction to the Council item cover sheet – final sentence, it should read, “If approved, Resolution No. 11-0118 initiates the proposed 2012, 93rd Lane NE Industrial Park Area Street Improvement Project and orders preparation of a feasibility report.
Motion adopted unanimously.

Motion 11-0015, Authorize the City Manager to Contract with Carlson McCain in a Not-to-Exceed Amount of $14,390.00 for Topographic Surveying Services for the 93rd Lane NE Industrial Park Area Street Improvements in Accordance with Proposal dated August31, 2011, Improvement Project No. 11-16.
Action 11-238 (AI 12.7)

Moved by Councilmember Herbst, seconded by Councilmember Kolb, to “Authorize the City Manager to Contract with Carlson McCain in a Not-to-Exceed Amount of $14,390.00 for Topographic Surveying Services for the 93rd Lane NE Industrial Park Area Street Improvements in Accordance with Proposal dated August31, 2011, Improvement Project No. 11-16,” be approved.

City Engineer Keely reported this item is related to the previous item.  This item is for the topographic survey service for use in design of the 93rd Lane NE Industrial Park Area Street reconstruction project.  Quotes from three companies were received and Carlson McCain was the lowest bid of $14,390.  It is recommended that a contract be entered into with Carlson McCain in a not-to-exceed amount of $14,390.  The topographic surveying services will be funded by a combination of assessments to benefitting properties and the PMP capital Improvements Plan funds.  
Mayor Ryan asked if this is the first time to work with the Carlson McCain.  City Engineer Keely stated the City is currently working with them on another project.

Motion adopted unanimously.

Resolution 11-0119, Approve Joint Powers Agreement with the City of Lexington for the Reconstruction of Hamline Avenue NE from Edgewood Road NE to Patriot Lane NE, Improvement Project No. 10-13.
Action 11-239 (AI 12.8)

Moved by Councilmember Swanson, seconded by Councilmember Bourke, that Resolution 11-0119, “Joint Powers Agreement with the City of Lexington for the Reconstruction of Hamline Avenue NE from Edgewood Road NE to Patriot Lane NE, Improvement Project No. 10-13,” be approved.

City Engineer Keely reported Hamline Avenue has exceeded its service life and has deteriorated to a point where it is becoming difficult to maintain and now requires a complete reconstruction.  Because the street lies within the corporate boundaries of both the City of Lexington and the City of Blaine, staff has been working with the City of Lexington on a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) to lay out the framework for an agreement to reconstruct Hamline Avenue in 2012 from Edgewood roads NE to Patriot Lane NE.  All the costs incurred with the project will be shared by the two cities based on the front footage.  The City of Lexington asked to administer the project because they have all the residential driveways and Blaine has commercial/industrial.  Blaine will oversee the process and both cities shall approve the final design prior to bidding of the project and will share responsibilities.  
Motion adopted unanimously.

Motion-0016, Authorize the City Manager to Enter into Contract with Stepaniak Construction in a Not-to-Exceed Amount of$12,619.00 for Construction Services for the 101st Avenue NE Culvert Replacement in Accordance with Quote dated August 31, 2011, Improvement Project No. 11-14.

Action 11-240 (AI 12.9)

Moved by Councilmember Bourke, seconded by Councilmember Kolb, that “Authorize the City Manager to Enter into Contract with Stepaniak Construction in a Not-to-Exceed Amount of $12,619.00 for Construction Services for the 101st Avenue NE Culvert Replacement in Accordance with Quote dated August 31, 2011, Improvement Project No. 11-14,” be approved.

City Engineer Keely reported there is an existing corrugated metal culvert is failing and causing backup of water that is impacting Waste Management’s parking lot.  The City received four quotes from contractors and Stepaniak Construction was the lowest bid of $12,619.  The Council is asked to approve a 10% contingency to bring the total project budget to $13,881.  The project will be funded by the Storm water Utility Funds.
Mayor Ryan asked if the lot north of the culvert is owned by the City.  City Engineer Keely responded the lot may be owned by Northern Asphalt.
Motion adopted unanimously.

Resolution 11-0127, Approve Parking Restrictions on the North Side of 99th Avenue NE from 3rd Street NE to University Avenue NE (NP11-02). 
Action 11-241 (AI 12.10)

Moved by Councilmember Kolb, seconded by Councilmember Bourke, that Resolution 11-0127, “Parking Restrictions on the North Side of 99th Avenue NE from 3rd Street NE to University Avenue NE (NP11-02),” be approved.

City Engineer Keely reported the University Avenue Elementary School is requesting the Council restrict parking on 99th Avenue during school hours of 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday.
Motion adopted unanimously.

Motion 11-0022, Approve Settlement Agreement for Gardenwood Bonds.
Action 11-242 (AI 12-11)

City Manager Arneson stated the Council is being asked to approve the terms of a settlement agreement and allow the Mayor and City Manager to execute an agreement on behalf of the City.  The City of Blaine had previously sued Lexon Bonding Company on five performance bonds related to the Gardenwood development and posted to the City of Blaine.  The project went into bankruptcy and the improvements never took place.  In Federal court, a settlement agreement was reached for $800,000.  The bonding company will pay the City of Blaine $800,000 within fifteen days of execution of the agreement. A full and mutual release of claims. A non-disparagement clause.  No leans placed on the property and this settlement agreement settles all material claims.  The next step is for staff and Woodland and Village Bank to reinvest the dollars into the project.  
Mayor Ryan asked if the Council’s approval will trigger the start of the fifteen days.  City Manager Arneson responded the bonding company will pay within fifteen days once the agreement is formally signed by all parties.
Moved by Councilmember Clark, seconded by Councilmember Bourke, that the Council approve the material terms of the Settlement Agreement.

City Attorney Sweeney stated an additional term the bonding company will not sue Village Bank or Woodland Development.

Councilmember Swanson stated the fifteen days does not start until the New York attorney or the bonding company sends the agreement to Blaine’s City Attorney to be signed.
Motion adopted unanimously.

OTHER BUSINESS

Councilmember Hovland asked about Rice Creek Watershed District meeting today.  City Manager Arneson stated the City met with the Rice Creek Watershed District today on the maintenance of the ditch.  He stated the maintenance of the ditch will be increased.  Although, Rice Creek Watershed District does not have enough money to cover all of the ditch system.  JD1 is on the list for next year.  

Councilmember Hovland asked who is responsible for the maintenance of the culverts.  He stated one entity should manage the maintenance.  City Manager Arneson stated the ditch laws are old and need to be updated.  Whoever owns the road is responsible for the culvert.  Councilmember Hovland asked if it can be controlled by Anoka County.  City Manager Arneson responded this is Rice Creek Watershed District’s interpretation of how the law reads.
Councilmember Herbst stated the stormwater people need to be involved in the culvert maintenance.  City Manager Arneson responded he will discuss the culvert issue with staff and bring it back to the Council.  Rice Creek Watershed District will, under the current plan, do hot spot maintenance.  
Councilmember Hovland stated if Blaine does the maintenance will Rice Creek Watershed District reimburse the City.  Mayor Ryan stated the City has never been reimbursed for culvert work done.  Councilmember Herbst stated there is a watershed levy for the Rice Creek Watershed District and Coon Creek Watershed District being assessed.  

Mayor Ryan stated the application is in to the State of Minnesota in becoming a Yellow Ribbon City.  Mayor Ryan thanked Executive Assistant Rebecca Olson for her work on completing the application.
ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Councilmember Swanson, seconded by Councilmember Herbst, to adjourn the meeting at 9:17 p.m.
Motion adopted unanimously.








Tom Ryan, Mayor

ATTEST:

Catherine B. Ekstrand, CMC, Deputy City Clerk

Submitted by TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc.

